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Kennedy, Regine

From: Juan Ochoa <jochoa@pechanga-nsn.gov>

Sent: Thursday, February 15, 2024 3:45 PM

To: Kennedy, Regine

Cc: Ebru Ozdil; Molly Earp; Paul Macarro; Tina Thompson Mendoza

Subject: [EXTERNAL] Pechanga Tribe AB52 Response to PR-2020-001114 Mikasa Multi-Family 

Development

Follow Up Flag: Follow up

Flag Status: Flagged

 

CAUTION: This email originated from outside the City of Riverside. It was not sent by any City official 
or staff. Use caution when opening attachments or links.  

 

Dear Regine Kennedy,  
  

This letter is written on behalf of the Pechanga Band of Indians (hereinafter, "the Tribe") a federally recognized 

Indian tribe and sovereign government in response to the AB 52 notice provided by the City of Riverside.  

  

This email serves as the Tribe's formal request to begin consultation under AB 52 for this Project. Per AB 52, 

we intend to assist the City in determining the type of environmental document that should be prepared for this 

Project (i.e. EIR, MND, ND); with identifying potential tribal cultural resources (TCRs); determining whether 

potential substantial adverse effects will occur to them; and to develop appropriate preservation, avoidance 

and/or mitigation measures, as appropriate. CEQA, as amended by AB 52, requires the City to avoid damaging 

effects to the significance of a tribal cultural resource. As such, the preferred TCR mitigation is complete 

avoidance and the Tribe requests that all efforts to preserve sensitive TCRs be made as early in the development 

process as possible.  

  

Please add the Tribe to your distribution list(s) for public notices and circulation of all documents, including 

environmental review documents, archaeological reports, development plans, conceptual grading plans (if 

available), and all other applicable documents pertaining to this Project. The Tribe further requests to be directly 

notified of all public hearings and scheduled approvals concerning this Project, and that these comments be 

incorporated into the record of approval for this Project.  

  

The Pechanga Tribe asserts that the Undertaking is a part of ‘Atáaxum (Luiseño) territory, and therefore the 

Tribe’s aboriginal territory as evidenced by the existence of cultural features associated with religious practice 

and an extensive artifact record in the vicinity of the Project. This culturally sensitive area is affiliated with the 

Pechanga Band of Indians because of the Tribe's cultural ties to this area as well as our extensive history with 

the City and other projects within the area. 

  

As you know, the AB 52 consultation process is ongoing and continues until appropriate mitigation has been 

agreed upon for the TCRs that may be impacted by the Project. As such, under both AB 52 and CEQA, we look 

forward to working closely with the City on ensuring that a full, comprehensive environmental review of the 

Project's impacts is completed.  
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In addition to those rights granted to the Tribe under AB 52, the Tribe reserves the right to fully participate in 

the environmental review process, as well as to provide further comment on the Project's impacts to cultural 

resources and potential mitigation for such impacts.  

  

The Pechanga Tribe looks forward to working together with the City of Riverside XXX in protecting the 

invaluable Pechanga cultural resources found in the Project area. The formal contact person for this Project will 

be Ebru Ozdil. Please contact her at 951-770-6313 or at eozdil@pechanga-nsn.gov within 30 days of receiving 

this consultation request so that we can begin the consultation process. Thank you. 

 

Juan Ochoa, MLIS 

Assistant Tribal Historic Preservation Officer 

Pechanga Cultural Resources Department 

P.O. Box 2183 

Temecula, CA 92593 

Office:(951)-770-6308 

jochoa@pechanga-nsn.gov 

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTE: “This message and any documents or files attached to it contains confidential 

information and may be legally privileged. Recipients should not file copies of this message and/or attachments 

with publicly accessible records. If you are not the intended recipient or authorized agent for the intended 

recipient, you have received this message and attachments in error, and any review, dissemination, or 

reproduction is strictly prohibited. If you are not the intended recipient, please immediately notify us by reply 

email or by telephone at 951-770-6308, and destroy the original transmission and its attachments without 

reading them or saving them.” 
 



Rincon Band of Luiseño Indians 
CULTURAL RESOURCES DEPARTMENT 
One Government Center Lane  |  Valley Center  |  CA 92082 
(760) 749-1092  |  Fax: (760) 749-8901  |  rincon-nsn.gov 

 

 
Bo Mazzetti 

Chairman 
Vacant 
Vice Chair 

Laurie E. Gonzalez 
Council Member 

John Constantino 
Council Member 

Joseph Linton 
Council Member 

 

March 19, 2024 
 
Sent via email: RKennedy@riversideca.gov 
City of Riverside 
Community & Economic Development Department 
Planning Division 
Ms. Regine Kennedy 
3900 Main Street 
Riverside, CA 92522 
 
 
Re: Mikasa Multifamily Housing Development; Planning Case PR-2020-001114 

 

Dear Ms. Kennedy, 
 
This letter is written on behalf of the Rincon Band of Luiseño Indians (“Rincon Band” or “Tribe”), a federally 
recognized Indian Tribe and sovereign government. Thank you for providing us with the Cultural Resources 
Assessment.  
 
We have reviewed the provided documents and recommend conditioning the project with protocols for inadvertent 
discoveries of cultural material and human remains. Additionally, the Tribe asks to be notified of and consulted 
with any findings of cultural materials of Native American origin. We understand that other Tribes potentially have 
knowledge particular to this project site and may request additional measures. Please note that the Rincon Band 
supports all efforts to completely avoid cultural resources as preferred mitigation.  

If you have additional questions or concerns, please do not hesitate to contact our office at your convenience at 
(760) 297-2635 or via electronic mail at cmadrigal@rincon-nsn.gov. We look forward to working together to protect 
and preserve our cultural assets.  
 
Sincerely,  

 
Cheryl Madrigal 
Tribal Historic Preservation Officer 
Cultural Resources Manager 
 

mailto:RKennedy@riversideca.gov


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

 

January 23, 2024 
 
Sent via email: rkennedy@riversideca.gov 

 
Re: Mikasa Multifamily Housing Development, County of Riverside, California 

 
Dear Regine Kennedy,  
 
This letter is written on behalf of the Rincon Band of Luiseño Indians (“Rincon Band” or “Tribe”), a federally 
recognized Indian Tribe and sovereign government. We have received your notification regarding the above-
mentioned project. The identified location is within the Traditional Use Area (TUA) of the Luiseño people. As such, 
the Rincon Band is traditionally and culturally affiliated to the project area.  
 
We kindly ask to be provided with copies of existing documents pertaining to the project such as the cultural survey 
including the archaeological site records, shape files, archaeological record search results, geotechnical report, and 
the grading plans. Upon receipt and review, the Rincon Band will determine if AB52  and or SB18 consultation is 
needed.  
 
If you have additional questions or concerns, please do not hesitate to contact our office at your convenience at 
(760) 749 1092 ext. 320 or via electronic mail at slinton@rincon-nsn.gov. Thank you for the opportunity to protect 
and preserve our cultural assets. 
 
Sincerely,  

 
Shuuluk Linton 
Tribal Historic Preservation Coordinator 
 



 

 
Confidentiality: The entirety of the contents of this letter shall remain confidential between 
Soboba and the City of Riverside. No part of the contents of this letter may be shared, copied, or 
utilized in any way with any other individual, entity, municipality, or tribe, whatsoever, without 
the expressed written permission of the Soboba Band of Luiseño Indians.   
 

February 15, 2024 
 
 
Attn: Regine Kennedy, Senior Planner 
City of Riverside 
Community & Economic Development Department, Planning Division 
3900 Main Street, 3rd Floor 
Riverside, CA 92522 
 
 
 
RE: AB 52 Consultation; Mikasa Multi- Family Development – 4663 & 4705 Hedrick 
Avenue & 4618 Jones Avenue – APNs 143-040-010, 143-040-011 & 143-040-012 – City of 
Riverside, Riverside County, CA 
 
The Soboba Band of Luiseño Indians has received your notification pursuant under Assembly 
Bill 52.   
 
The information provided to us on said project has been assessed through our Cultural Resource 
Department, where it was concluded that although it is outside the existing reservation, the 
project area does fall within the bounds of our Tribal Traditional Use Areas. The project area is 
considered sensitive by the people of Soboba, as there are existing sites in the 
surrounding areas. An in-house database search identified multiple areas of potential 
impact. Based on the sensitive nature of the substantial information that will be disclosed 
by the tribe, specifics will be discussed in a confidential setting, during consultation.  
 
At this time, the Soboba Band of Luiseño Indians is requesting to initiate formal consultation with 
the City of Riverside. A meeting can be scheduled by contacting me via email or phone. All 
contact information has been included in this letter. 
 
I look forward to hearing from and meeting with you soon. 
 
 
Sincerely, 
 

 
 
Joseph Ontiveros, Tribal Historic Preservation Officer 
Soboba Band of Luiseño Indians 
P.O. Box 487 
San Jacinto, CA 92581 
Phone (951) 654-5544 ext. 4137 
Cell (951) 663-5279 
jontiveros@soboba-nsn.gov 

mailto:jontiveros@soboba-nsn.gov


 
 

Community & Economic Development Department            Planning Division 

3900 Main Street, Riverside, CA 92522 | Phone: (951) 826-5371 | RiversideCA.gov 
 

NOTICE OF PROJECT (SB18) 
 

In accordance with Government Code Section 65352.3 (SB 18), the City of Riverside is sending this request for 

consultation to California Native American Tribes included on the Native American Heritage Commission 

(NAHC) Contact List. SB 18 requires cities and counties to contact, and consult (as outlined in GC 65352.4) with 

California Native American Tribes before adopting or amending a General Plan for the purpose of protecting 

Native American Cultural Places. Consultation shall recognize the tribes’ potential needs for confidentiality with 

respect to places that have traditional tribal cultural significance. California Native American tribes have 90 

days from the date of this notice to request consultation with the City regarding this project. 

 

DATE OF NOTICE:  January 12, 2024 

 

PROJECT TITLE:  Mikasa Multi-Family Development 

 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION:  PLANNING CASE PR-2020-001114 (GPA, RZ, DR): Proposal by Hugo Lepe, on behalf 

of Century Heritage Builders, Inc., to consider the following entitlements to construct a 117-unit multi-family 

development: 1) General Plan Amendment to amend 2.72 acres of the project site from land use 

designation MDR- Medium Density Residential to HDR – High Density Residential; 2) Zoning Code 

Amendment to rezone 2.72 acres of the project site from R-1-7000 – Single Family Residential to R-3-1500 

– Multi-family Residential; and 3) Design Review of project plans. 

 

PROJECT LOCATION: The 4.54-acre project site consists of three contiguous parcels, currently developed 

with single family homes, located at 4663 and 4705 Hedrick Avenue and 4618 Jones Avenue, bounded 

by Hedrick Avenue to the west and Jones Avenue to the east, in the R-1-7000 – Single Family Residential 

Zone and R-3-1500 - Multifamily Residential Zone, in Ward 6. 

 

APN’s:  143-040-010, 143-040-011, and 143-040-012 

 
 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT/LEAD AGENCY:  City of Riverside 

CONTACT PERSON: Regine Kennedy, Senior Planner 

PHONE:  (951) 826-5712 

E-MAIL: rkennedy@riversideca.gov 

 

ADDRESS:  Community & Economic Development Department, Planning Division  

      3900 Main Street, 3rd Floor, Riverside, CA  92522 

 

Should you have any questions regarding this case, please do not hesitate to contact the Planner listed above. 

After 90 days from the date of this notice, the City will respond to a request for consultation or proceed with 

the entitlement process.  
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VICINITY MAP

MIKASA LUXURY VILLAS
4618 JONES AVENUE,  4663 HEDRICK AVENUE

 & 4705 HEDRICK AVENUE,
RIVERSIDE, CA 92505
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 Underground  Service  Alert

                   Call: TOLL FREE

811

            WWW.CALL811.COM
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